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“Their own inner light,” said Penn.
over, as I i:mnd to equitably buy their lands, I

not be harmed.” ks
shd}';uv their lands?” replied the King in sur-
prise. “Why is not the land mine? Have I not

ted it to you?” :
gﬂu:‘N‘), your Majesty, you have no right to their
lands—they are the original occupants of the
soil.” (Acting on the principal just stated, the
conquest of Pennsylvania was different from that
of any other part of the Americas.)

His relations with the Indians were a!wa_ys
friendly. Although he accepted Perm?ylvama in-
stead of money owed him by the King, he as-
sumed that the Indians had a prior right to the
lands and that he should satisfy these rights before
he could sell or lease lands to white settlers. Penn,
therefore, adopted the policy of buying from the
Indians lands which were already his under the
terms of his charter. Numerous conferences and
treaties were arranged by Penn and his agents for
the purpose of securing deeds from the Indian
chiefs, who acted as agents for their tribes. While
the money value paid for these lands by Penn was
usually far less than the actual value, the Indians
were satisfied and that was the real purpose of the
transaction. For seventy years this peaceful policy
of William Penn was carried out in the dealing of
the Province with the Indians. Benjamin West’s
famous painting of Penn’s treaty with the Indians
at Shackamaxon depicts better than words the

friendly relations existing at that time.

8. When and how did this peaceful policy of
dealing with the Indians change for the

worse?

In 1737 the Province took from the Delaware

Indians living near Easton on the Delaware River
their
¢

people were to get as much
land as zould be covered by a man whgo walked for
two days. When the walk was made, the most
active white man, a celebrated and seasoned run.
ner, was obtained, who running at top speed from
daylight uneil dark, and then resuming the same
Pace the following morning, doubled the lands
claimed by‘ the white men over that contemplate]
by the Tndians, This purchase, certainly unwise if

?;; unjitm, was the opening transaction which
ed t along the border.

» ;h:pen hostilities

wares, wnees, and western I di -
away from English influence and bcca:xe,u:: tfu:gu
along the west.

Passed, the friends of the French

and rivers. During the French
ma: they devastated the frontiers ﬁf _'
ern Pennsylvania. Later the Imquok, ﬁ -
Nations, living in Central New York and ing
lands in Northern Pennsylvania, upomdﬁg
cause of the British during the Revolution an
once again the frontiers of Northern and Western
Pennsylvania were laid waste by Indi:nm
In fact, there was little peace and security dagg
the frontier from 1756 until Wayne’s victory over

o

the Western tribes in 1794, It is indicaive‘yo

these perilous years that in 1764 Indians actacked
a schoolhouse in Franklin County, killing the
teacher and eleven pupils. However, that it may
be understood that acts of savagery were not all
on one side, let us note that in 1756 Governor
Morris issued a proclamation offering bounties
for Indian scalps. These bounties differed accord-
ing to sex and age—more being paid for males
above ten years of age. The top price was one
hundred and fifty Spanish dollars.

9. What famous white woman captive prob-
ably journeyed from Ohio across the
country now included in Warren and Mc-
Kean Counties and finally made her home
on the lower waters of the Genesee River?

Since 1824 twenty-eight editions of the life of
Mary Jemison, “The White Woman of the Gene-
see,” have been written for an appreciative public.
When she was a child of thirteen, her home was
raided at Marsh Creek near Gettysburg. Her
parents were killed and she was taken captive to
Pittsburgh where she was adopted by two young
Indian women who had lost a brother in the wars
against the whites. The Indian family then moved
down the Ohio to the mouth of the Scioto River
where Mary made her home for four years, final.
ly marrying a Shawnee warrior. However, since
influential members of the family were of the
Seneca tribe living on the Genesee River (now
New York State), she and three of her adopted
brothers set ‘out by way of Sandusky on Lake Erie
to Venango, Warren, and Salamanca to go to the
Seneca tribal headquarters. Most of the journey
of six hundred miles was made on foot, with Mary
carrying an infant of seven months on her back.






i the area now
W!;Ete ﬁex“m&dczx:;: :‘:nlt ‘::order warfare
mpthn:n Iiduns had moved westward into Ohno
However, in 1779 Washington sent two expedi-
ions against the Six Nations in reprisal for the
m of settlers living at Forty Fort in the
Wyoming Valley. Here a force of seven l'fund:ed
Senecas and four hundred British provincials met
and defeated in the previous year the armec! forces
of the settlers, who had sent most of their able-
bodied men into Washington’s army. The con-
flict was soon over. Major Butler, the British of-
fier, reported two hundred and twenty-seven
scalps taken. It was a complete victory for the
Indians and British, who marched into the fort,
robbed the inmates of whatever valuables they
possessed and then passed on to plunder and
devastace the whole valley. Settlers below Forty
Fort had, in the meantime, abandoned their
homes and fled in panic toward the Delaware
River. The “Wyoming Massacre” was kept alive
for many years in song and tradition among Penn-
sylvanians, symbolizing as it did the events of
the dreadful years of Indian border warfare.

Washington now planned to break the power
of the Six Nations so thoroughly as to prevent
furure raids against the whites along the northern
borders of the State. An expedition of five thou-
sand men under the leadership of General Sul-
livan was sent from Easton on the Delaware by
way of Sunbury and Tioga Point (Athens)
against the Indians located in southern and cen-
tral New York State. He defeated the warriors
of the Six Nations at a place near the present city
of Elmira. His troops then passed on to destroy
all the property, including growing crops, orch-
ards, and villages of the tribes thar had destroyed
Forty Fort the year before.

At the same time that General Sullivan struck
from the southeast, Colonel Daniel Broadhead
was directed to conduct an expedition from Pitts.
bu:gh northward along the Allegheny River
against the Seneca and Muncy nations living at
Kinzua, Salamanca, and adjacent places. The
Broadhead force left Pittsburgh on August 11
and returned on September 14, 1779. It went
through Venango, Watren, and probably through

' ca and Olean. There are those who thi
it also passed throtfgh Smethport and Ka:e annld(.
own the Tionesta and Allegheny to Pigts.

rch, In any event, Colonel

ores in a dozen or more In-
villages on thg upper Allegheny, He par-

dred acres of com,uﬁua'ru,mgi

and plunder amounting to $3
5 to Washington that he e:
Senecas and Muncies, in their great

sue for peace. ;b
13. When did the Indians surrender their it
to lands now included in McKean County?

In 1784 commissioners from Pennsylvania
and chiefs representing the Six Nations met at
Fort Stanwix (now Rome) in the Mohawk VM
The Indians ceded all lands in northwestern Penn-
sylvania, except the Erie triangle, to the state gov-
ernment for the sum of $5,000. The same com-
missioners were sent later in the year to Fort Mec-
Intosh on the Ohio River to make a treaty with :
the Western Indians who also claimed rights to
Pennsylvania lands. The commissioners paid $2,-
000, which extinguished forever Indian claims to
lands in Pennsylvania. Pennsylvania acquired by
these treaties ‘lands that now include all of ten,
and parts of eight other, counties in the north-
western area of the state,” : :

Those who are interested in tracing the area
included in this “Last Purchase” may do so on a
map of Pennsylvania. It began where the Ohio
River leaves Pennsylvania and went north to the
42nd parallel of latitude, thence eastward
that parallel to the point where the east branch
the Susquehanna River enters Pennsylvania. The
purchase went down this river to a point near
Wyalusing, thence west to the head waters of
Pine Creek and then down that creek to Jersey
Shore, then up the Susquehanna to a point near
Kittanning, then west to Kittanning, and from
there along the Allegheny and Ohio to the place
of beginning. At the time of the purchase this
area was largely an uninhabited and untraversed
wilderness. It was not until thirteen years after
this purchase that the first settler came to what is
now MecKean County. During the year 1786, the
“Last Purchase” was divided into ten dutﬁm CEJ ]
surveyors were appointed to make reliminary
surveys in order that the State :mghr sell hﬁ'
to settlers. However, owing to Indian troubles in
1791-1794, little could be done in surveying M
western lands. The Indians had spent the $7,000
ml:ln were ;«:Z to condemn the action of éun-
Planter an er chi ‘ ‘
7y st Iduefs who had made the treaty

defeat of Indian ;o\::rni:t’uaﬁl b o ie







off lands claimed by the Englih in the Obio
Valley. From this time on until the close o 2
French and Indian War, both the French an
English made determined efforts to tal.te and hold
all lands in the Ohio and Allegheny River va.lleys.
At first fortune favored the French, but finally
the whole region came under the control of the
British.

17. What boundary disputes had Pennsylvania

with neighboring colonies?

While the boundaries of Penn’s lands in
America had been fixed by charter, the terms of
that charter unfortunately conflicted with other
charters granted to neighboring colonies. As a
result the location of boundary lines for many
years vexed colonial officials, and, in one instance
at least, led to bloodshed. Pennsylvania had dis-
putes with both Maryland and Virginia about the
southern border. There were also disagreements
with New York over the boundary line. Massa-
chusetts claimed the lands in the “Erie Triangle.”

However, the dispute between Connecticut
and Pennsylvania over the lands in the northern
part of the colony was far more serious. Connect;.
cut’s charter, made long before that of Charles to
Penn, assigned to that colony lands between cer-
tain latitudes from sea to sea unless already
possessed by other colonies. New York and New
Jersey were already settled when Connecticut’s
charter was granted in 1662, but by leaping over
these areas, that province claimed that her charter
gave her the right to all unoccupied lands extend-
ing to the westward of the Delaware River. About
the year 1750, enterprising settlers from Con-

 mecticut began to come to northern Pennsylvania,
settling chiefly in the Wyoming Valley in what is
now Luzerne County. The heirs of William Penn
were unable to employ enough magistrates and
sheriffs to force the Connecticut people from

) Pennsylvania Legis] ?
granting Pennsylvania titles to the langd‘i a:ll:if:l:
- settlers had Previously held i

There are maps showing

Samuel Stanton who years :ﬁm M
necticut for Wayne County in northea.
sylvania, and then finally moved to M
County. He and those who came with W
served che New England traditions, even in
the village “common,” or public square.

After whom was it named?

McKean was set aside from Lycoming in lm
and named after Governor Thomas McKean

whose energy contributed much toward the m

ment of the northwestern part of the State. Dur-

3

ing his governorship, extending from 1799 to
1808, seventeen of our sixty-seven counties were
organized. He was a signer of the Declaration of
Independence and a member of the Congress for

eleven years. He was also Chief Justice of Penn-
sylvania for a time. He was one of the most active
and public-spirited of our Revolutionary patriots.

19.  Who first settled in McKean County?

In the year 1797 Francis King, a surveyor
who had recently moved from London to Phila-
delphia, was employed by John Keating of that
city to explore lands in the northern part of the
State then owned by William Bingham of Phila-
delphia. At the time Francis King lived with his
family at Asylum, in Bradford County, Pennsyl-
vania. From this point on the Susq na River,
Francis King struggled through the wilderness
lying between his home and lands he was sup-
posed to survey with only a boy of fourteen and
a pack horse to carry provisions. Lost in the
forests after six weeks of wandering and almost
completely out of food, he was taken violently ill
at the home of a poor settler somewhere near
where the Sinnemahoning joins the Susquehanna,
Sending the boy back home with a letter to his
wife, Mr. King remained for another six weeks
before he was able to return to his home at Asy-
lum. In the spring of 1798, Mr. King and his
family, consisting of his wife and seven children,
together with workmen, again started for his new
home on the lands which had been purchased by

John Keating upon his recommendation. The
lictle party came thr ]
Haven,

and finally to the mouth of the Oswayo, which
they ascended six miles to a site near uk?m :
vnlhge of Ceres, The nearest sett nt of three

s
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investments in the New Woolid. Loaﬂns.n‘; Pé;:

whtehmz iwners of 297,000 acres
l:;n)l:nds bought from the WM Bmghﬁ
Estate. The entire management of this estate

him.l*lt%nmednponitwidnheume:ied
?;?mmﬂmm.m.f.wum.
He endured labor, privation, and perxl‘ in super-
vising and founding his settlements in several
Pennsylvania counties. Each settlement had to be
made self-supporting and at the same time made
to return some revenue to the Company. He was
far-sighted and generous, and enjoyed the con-
fidence of the many settlers to whom he had
granted and sold lands. His visits to the lands
owned by the Company continued for nearly
fifty years. He died in Philadelphia at the ac:l-
vanced age of 95 years, beloved not only by his
friends and neighbors, among them the chief men
of the day in business; but also by those in the
more remote sections of the Commonwealth who
had known him as their benefactor.

22. Was McKean County originally the same
shape and size that it is today?

The number, shape, and size of Pennsylvania
counties make a very interesting study. In the be-
ginning, Penn carved but three counties out of
his woodland domain. These were Philadelphia
and Bucks on the Delaware, and Chester, which
included all the other lands in the Province. As
occasion arose, other counties were formed from
Chester, These were as follows up to the time of
the organization of McKean County:

Lancaster from Chester

......... 1729
Cumberland from Lancaster . . 1750
Bedford from Cumberland .= 1771

Northumberland from Bedford = 1772
Lycoming from Northumberland 1796
McKean from Lycoming =

'I.'hree changes have been made in the bound-
ary lines of McKean County since 1804,

1860: Parts of Clinton, E d McK
were taken to make Cameron C;.:nt;: o
1843: Parts of Jefferson, Clearfield, and Mec.
Kean were organized into Elk County,
. 1864: Lands along the Allegheny River ad.
Jacent to Warren ty were made a part of that

.b tants of that area found it
more convenient to attend court in Warren

The creasi e
dctuuon of new counties was largely a

growth in population of cereain
mienen, and wrsioss. of ol prce

&“ Tk -
10

created to take care of local administrativ
This was especially true in the days
times nearly impassable. For instance,
1840 shows two roads leading from I
to Smethport. However, residents of
Township could not possibly make a visit
county seat under two or possibly three
With the growth of Emporium and areas a
in Shippen Township, the demand for more
venient county administrative facilities could
met only by the creation of a new county. Tt
to Pennsylvania’s good roads, county seats
were once a day or even several days apart
travel are now separated by hours, or even
utes. It may be that in the interest of p
economy there will be a regrouping of cou
for certain administrative activities, ,

23. How many townships in McKean C
in 1804? '

-

There were but two townships. Ceres, M ich
comprised all the northern two-thirds of the
county, everything north of the southern bﬂlﬂdﬂy
ary of what is now Lafayette and Keating Town-
ships; and Sergeant, which included all i
remaining portion of what is now K
County, together with what was taken to form
Cameron and part of Elk in 1843. Altogether
there have been twenty-two changes in township
names and lines since 1804, The names and dmw?i
of formation of the fifteen townships of the

i

county are as follows:

1. Ceres . ... Original 8. Norwich 4

1835
2 Sergeant .. Original o, Lafayette . 1842
3. Keating ... 1824 10, Eldred .. . 184
4 Bradford . ... 1828 11. Hamlin 1844
5. Liberey ... .. 1828 12. Ome: e 1853
6. Corydon . . . 1829 13. Wetmore .
7. Hamilton . 1834 14. Anpin ..

; 13, Poswr i 00 1880

TMDllips-TomVﬂhge.

The date and circumstances
first settlement was made in the






Uncle Daniel’ would not peemit it to be laid out
s o « d.”

Inh?Blz;l,l I‘,l":&'v, and 1871, attempts were
made to discover oil in Bradford Township. By
the end of 1875 there were reported to be sle_lven
teen producing wells in the Bradford area.l c:!w-
ever, the next five years saw a mthbe e-
velopment of this most impor.tant industry. Th;
township became and still remains one of the chie
oil producing townships of the county. To.ad
Hollow, Song Bird, West Branch, and Custer City
became centers of the producing areas. The last-
named village was named by Civil War veterans
in honor of General George Custer. :

Ceres: These data already contain many items
concerning the early settlement of Ceres. Once
occupying two-thirds of the county, Ceres has
been reduced to approximately forty square miles
located in the extreme northwestern corner of the
county. In like manner the political and industrial
activities of the township have been more or less
limited by the passage of time. Not only was Ceres
the “hub” of the county in its earliest days, but a
little later it was the center of the pine and hem-
lock lumber activities of the Oswayo Valley. Dis-
covery of petroleum in McKean County also
brought its share of improvement to Ceres, In
1881 the Bradford, Eldred, and Cuba Railroad
was constructed, passing through Ceres on is
way from the oil fields to Cuba, Having a popu.

lation of less than one thousand, the county had
fifty-two men i i

of the celebrated “Bucktails”
of General Kane was the one
which marched through Port
porium to Driftwood where it
panies. From there they were
Sinnemahoning and

to answer the call
from this district,
Allegany and Em.
joined other com.
rafted down the
the Susquehanna to Lock

8¢ was the Gretna
' state line rung through the sitting room of the
Parsonage, making e Very convenient for the

Pastor of the church ¢o perform wedding cere.-
monies for citizens of either state,

is some of the earl |
f‘:i'nnﬂg‘ down the river would be lttl‘athd::: :hf:
Wcr ts and VOr to make homes thereon,

read that 54 early as 1808

tled along the tiver. He Shilip Tome ok

Was one of the greatest

—
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hunters who resided in the m&u
“Thirty Years a Hunter” recounts many
adventures. McKnight in his “Pioneer H
Northwestern Pennsylvania” tells of the ¢
a live elk on the Kettle Creek by Isaac I
Philip Tome and others. The elk was a
a raft on the Allegheny River, floated to :
Point, and from there taken through New Y
State to Albany where it was placed on exhibit i
For years Tome was accustomed to hunt & and
other big game on the “Big Level,” the M,
Jewett-St. Marys mountain top. In J. E. Henret.
ta’s “Kane and the Upper Allegheny,” mfem
is quoted as saying, “In August of 1820 I lefe
Kinzua Flats with white companions and two
Indians for the Four Corners (somewhere between
Kane and Mt. Jewett) to hunt elk. We proceeded
to the Kittanning Black House which was fitted
up for use.”” The party must have remained for
some time as it finally encountered snow three
feet deep. Finally the party returned to Kinzua
with the meat of fifteen deer and some elk, This
reference is also of value as it indicates' that in
1820 there was an Olean-Kittanning road which
had been in use for some years. ‘
Eldred: The first settlements in Eldred Town-
ship were made in 1808-10 by families which sll
number many descendants among the citizens of
the district. These were Loops, Hookers, Seulls,
and Wrights, Lumbering seems to have been
the chief occupation for many years. Records
show that between 1860 and 1879 seven of
the mills were burned, some with as much as three
million board feet of lumber in the yards. One
of the largest mills destroyed was located at Lara-
bee, the J. J. Newman Concern. The other was
the Bullis Brothers Mill at State Line, near the
present overhead crossing of the P. S. & N. R. R. :
Larabee, situated at the junction of the Pennsyl-

vania R, R. and the Clermont branch of the same
railroad,




he western areas, particularly in the
Indian Creek, Barnham, and State

~ Foster: This district was the last to be organ-
ized in the county. It was set aside from Bradford
Township in 1880 and of course up to that time
its history paralleled that of Bradford Township.
The name “Foster” was given to the new town-
ship thereby honoring Leonard S. Foster, the
oldest zontinuous resident of the Tuna Valley.

As one reads a history of the Bradford area
the names Littleton, Tarport, Kendall Creek, and
Bradford appear in a manner that is somewhat
confusing, As before stated, the name Littleton
was given the little settlement located near the
western end of Main Street when the United
States Land Company organized its holdings in
the Tuna Valley. The history of McKean, Elk,
Cameron, and Potter states that Tarport adjoins
Bradford City on the north and that Tarport was
great when Bradford was a hamlet and that for
years the trade of northwestern McKean County
was centered there. In 1876 the Tarport commu-
nity was organized as a borough and named
Kendall Creek. It is apparent that in the early
days there were two distinct communities a mile
or more apart. Time and a rapidly growing com-
munity merged everything into what is now
Bradford City, which, of course, includes parts of
what at one time were either Bradford or Foster

Townships.

It is interesting to note in R. B. Stone’s “Me-
Kean, the Governor’s County” a map and an
account of the first fifty-nine oil wells drilled in
the Bradford area. The first eight of these were
drilled near Limestone, just north of the state
line. The next twenty wells were drilled in the
Foster Brook region just north of the present city
limits. It was not until the sixteenth well came in
at seventy barrels on December 6, 1874, on the
Buchanan farm that the productivity of the Brad-
ford ficld was assured.

During the early days of the oil boom the
ground and the air were saturated with natural
gas and petroleum, a situation which often led
to frequent and disasterous fires. In 1880 the
newly settled village of Rew was destroyed by fire
which originated on one of the nearby leases.
More than fifty private homes, scores, and board-

ing houses were in less than two hours’
time, to say nothing of the loss of smaller build-
ings and lease rties. In the same year a fire

at Foster Brook destroyed one hundred and one
” ﬁﬁ. In October of the next year, Rew

had another and less disasterous fire, which con-
sumed a barber shop, a meat market, a bowling
alley, a blacksmith shop, two hotels, a furniture
store, a drug store, a saloon, and a wagon shop
with private dwellings. This list is given to .ho‘;
the change in occupations in the smaller towns of
the county during the last three-quarters of a
century. In the early days every little community
must have a variety of stores and shops to meet
local needs. Now these same conveniences are
suppied only in larger centers made accessible
through better transportation facilities.

Hamilton: Sometime about 1810-12 George
Morrison of the West Branch of the Susquehanna
River made his way along the same course pursued
by Philip Tome of Corydon and settled at or near
Morrison in Hamilton Township.

In the beginning practically all the lands in-
cluded in the southwestern portions of the county
were purchased by the Holland Land Company
from the Commonwealth. Later, a large part of
this township came under the control of L. D.
Wetmore of Warren, who had extensive mills at
Wetmore, located on the Pennsylvania Railroad
between Kane and Ludlow. In 1869 J. G. Curtis
built the Ludlow Tannery and began the manu-
facture of high grade leather for upholstering
purposes. In 1901 the Curtis interests were sold
to James A. Connelly, who has for many years
been one of the chief business and political figures
of the county. The Ludlow Tannery is one of two
tanneries still left of the many that once made
tanning one of the chief industries in McKean
County. In 1885 an eightinch gas line was
opened from Ludlow to Jamestown, New York,
which conveyed gas from McKean County’s gas
field to that city. This project was constructed by
the Pennsylvania Gas Company, which still has
large holdings in Hamilton and other townships
in northern Pennsylvania counties.

Hamlin: A map of McKean County in 1850

shows two roads crossing what is now Hamlin
Township at places named Kingston and Stanton.
One of these roads led from Williamsville, on the
edge of Elk County, to Smethport. The other was
the Ellicottville road from Emporium by way of
Rich Valley and Tarport into New York State.
Records show that Samuel Stanton, who settled
Canoe Place, had purchased seventeen hundred
actes in Hamlin Township and that the stream

Creck. A history of that portion of Hamlin known
as Hazelhurst dates back to 1838 when William
Field of Howard, New York, settled in the upper
Marvin Creek Valley. Mr. Field Jater moved his



. rd Hill, now known as Mt. Jewet&
mePl‘lY}?ﬁ;:: ;.,!gléo selected a site for a md:
tich is now known as Hazelhurst in honor o
the man who created this pleasant htt-le commu-
i ne time the town had a chemical factory
nity. At one factories. The first

and a number of large glass facto :
settlers in the western portions of Hamlin came
with Colonel Thomas Kane in 1860. They were
mostly Scandinavian nationality and rapidly
cleared very attractive farms along the Kane-Mt.
Jewett highway. A later member of the Kane
family, E. K. Kane of Kushequa, was known .fov:
many years for his many business enterprises
which included very extensive lar:id hholdmgs,
bering and oil activities, and the manu-
lf::t‘unng ;fg?:tick. He also constructed his own
railroad to carry his products to nearby trunk
lines, : ;
Keating: This township was the first to be
created after the organization of the county in
1804. Ceres was divided into two equal parts, the
southernmost one being named after John Keat-
ing. As before noted, Francis King and others,
probably including John Keating, surveyed
Smethport in 1807. In 1809 Benjamin Cooper,
then interested in building a town at Instanter in
Sergeant Township, petitioned Congress to make
a port of entry at the forks of the Nunundah
where he had purchased twenty acres of land near
the bridge in what is now East Smethport. It
seems the plan was to build a port at this site and
then carry the goods to Instanter by pack horses
or wagon trains. It is recorded that Jonathan
Colegrove came to Keating Township with his
wife and family by cance from Olean Point in
1815. He was an agent for the Ridgway lands
from 1817 to 1852. In 1810 James Otto and

family had already settled near what is now
Farmers Valley,

- In 1855-57 a “coal-oil” factory was established
near Smethport on Potato Creek, McKean Coun.
ty had developed a thriving business in this
commodity when Colonel Drake discovered a
much better product in his well at Ticusville, Tt

was no longer profitable to extract oil from coal,

although such a course may be necessary if our
pettoleum resources are finally exhausted. It is
interesting to note thar

vast war machine
largely from coal,
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known in 1879 as the “Banner Frontier Town,
had a newspaper; and an mpotun; oil :
railroad bore the imposing name o .
Bordell, and Kinzua.” Coryville and Farmers
Valley are situated in the, Nunundah (Pm)
Creek Valley in agricultural and oil refining cen.
ters. For years, “Backas,” on the B & O R:

was a junction point with E. K. Kane’s railroad
running from Mt. Jewett to Kushequa to Smeth-
port, thus affording the citizens of the county seat
access to Bradford, Kane, and other points. Since
then, Xane’s railroads have been abandoned and
not a vestige remains of “Bakas.” It has gone the
way of other so-called “ghost” tewns. As before
noted, East Smethport had an early historical
importance. It has remained, during the years, a
site important in road and railroad transportation,
as well as in the manufacture of wood products.

Lafayette: Recent developments in this town.
ship somewhat overshadow more ancient events.
Reference is made to the Music Mountain oil
developments of 1942 which raised the oil pro-
duction of Lafayette until it stands the highest
per capita in the county. In the spring of 1944,
the Federal Government completed a splendid
new airport at Mt, Alton, which has runways
more than a mile in extent. This project places
McKean County in an advantageous position as
far as post-war aviation is concerned.

Early settlements were made at Mt. Alton and
Lafayette. The last named was situated where the
East and West and Kittanning roads crossed and
must have been a place of importance in the early
development of the county. The early history of
Mt. Alton was chiefly concerned with the pro-
duction of lumber and coal. In July of 1863, the
Lafayette Coal Company was formed. Other
companies were organized and mines were opened
at Buttsville, Alton and Bon Vein, The town also
had wood alcohol and lumber products, at one
time. Marshburg, now a road junction, was at one
time a typical country lumber town with post
office,‘ school, stores, railroad, and hotel. I, too,
has gone the way of many other temporary, once
prosperous, communities. Westline on Kinzua
Creek in the southwestern corner of the township

has one of the largest wood chemical factories in
Pennsylvania,

Liberty: Old records indicate that permanent
settlement in this district was made in 1815
Stantons, Lillib idges, Burts, Fosters, and
v}r‘eﬂs. It seems the fiest dwellings were erected on
bridge that crosses the ﬁmn&.ﬂw&md




~ from chemical wood, in the county. Wood for the
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“m However, it was not until 1822 that

the so-called Red House Bridge was constructed
over the Allegheny. Records show that Samuel
Stanton of Canoe Place, Joel Bishop of Instanter,
and Isaac Lyman of Roulette were appointed the
first commissioners for the Potter-McKean area
in 1815. They held the first meeting in the house
of Benjamin Burt at Burtsville, John King, son
of Francis King, who had died the previous year,
was appointed as treasurer with an office ar Kings-
ville. It is interesting to note that both streams of
water arising at Keating Summit, one flowing
south to meet the Sinnemahoning at Emporium,
the other flowing north to join the Allegheny
River at Port Allegany, were named “Portage”
by the early settlers. Pioneers, and before them
the Indians, when passing from the Susquehanna
to the Allegheny and Ohio, found it necessary
to leave the water near the head waters of each
and carry, or “portage,” their goods and canoes
over the summits dividing these river systems.
Those who passed on to the westward upon com-
ing to the Allegheny named the junction point
of Portage Creek with the Allegheny “Cance
Place” for this was the place where once again
they could pursue their journey in the easier way.
The first industry of real consequence in this as
well as other McKean County townships was
lumbering. Early mill owners were Daniel Stan-
ton, Solomon Sartwell, Benjamin Burt, and
Daniel Clark. Somewhat later in the century, own-
ers of larger mills were A. M. Benton, F. E. Row-
ley, A. N, Lillibridge, E. B. Dolley, and F. H.
Arnold.

Notwich: This township was settled by pio-
neers from Connecticut, who after a brief sojourn
in New York, came on to Pennsylvania. Among
the first settlers were Jonathan Colegrove and
Nathaniel Gallup, who came to Norwich in the
year 1815. In court records of January 1816, we
find the names of David Comes and Jonathan
Colegrove appointed as viewers for much needed
bridges over Potato Creek on a road leading from
Smethport to Instanter. In the next year we find
the name of Nathaniel Gallup as a viewer for a
toad from Arnold Hunter’s house on the East
and West Road and connecting with the Instanter

Road.

Crosby, the chief manufacturing town of
Norwich Township, was once known as Spears-
burg and then Newerf. It is the site of the Crosby
Chemical Company, which at the present time is
one of the largest producers of products made

factory is obtained from the lands of the Heine-
mann Estate which, under the direction of the
late N. W. Heinemann, grew until it embraced a
great portion of the valuable gas and timber
lands of the township.

In 1811-12 lumbering was begun on the
26,000-acre tract of virgin timber belonging to
the Central Pennsylvania Lumber Company with
headquarters in Williamsport, For ten years the
upper Potato Creek Valley was a beehive of
various phases of the lumber industry. A great
saw mill was the center of activity at Norwich.
The town had moving pictures, a hotel, stores,
and dwellings for a thousand or more inhabitants.
Betula, meaning “beech,” was the site of another
equally as large town which used beech timber for
staves, while a short distance down the valley
there was the Keystone Chemical Factory that
used the remaining hardwoods in the manufacrure
of wood alcohol and by-products. Nothing re-
mains of Keystone except the huge brick smoke
stack. Norwich has vanished with the exception of
a few scartered houses along the highway that
leads to Emporium.

Most of Norwich Township is in the Potato
Creek Valley. However, the extreme southeastern
portion of the district lies in the Parker Run Val-
ley, a tributary of the Portage Creek that finally
reaches the Sinnemahoning at Emporium. The
great Elk Lick of Indian and very early pioneer
days was located about four miles from Gardeau
on Parker Run. In the days of long ago countless
deer and elk were accustomed to satisfy their
cravings for salt here. A little later white men
established one of the few salt factories in north-
western Pennsylvania. A road from Coudersport
called the “Salt Works” road led to Gardeau and
the Salt Works, In 1844, here also came George
and N. H. Parker who were attracted largely by
the fine hunting to be had at and near Gardeau
so bought tracts of land. George Parker was
doubtless one of the country’s greatest hunters.
After the novelty of hunting in the Gardeau area
had passed, he hunted the Lake Superior, Cali-
fornia, and Adirondack regions. His comment
upon first coming to the Elk Lick in 1838 was,
“No place on the American continent would
award the hunter’s pursuit as well as this” An
account in the “Fifty Years Ago” column of the
Port Allegany Reporter-Argus reminded the
readers that four fishermen from Wellsville, New
York, took from the Parker Run one hundred and
twenty-five pounds of brook trout. It seems that
Norwich in the pioneer days must have been 2
sportsman’s paradise. .



: At this writing the chief towns in Otto
T&p‘:re Rixford and Duke Center. H::.
ever, it seems that the first sertlement in the
erict was made at Prentss Vale abour 1842 by
Arthur Prentiss and Herman Strong, .who came
to the rownship to market the pine timber that
was found at the heads of the valleys. Othet
settlers who came to the district were Benjar'nm
Bunker in 1852 and John Duke about the time

of the Civil War.

Rixford and Duke Center were among the
boom towns of the early Bradford oil field, and
still remain centers of rich oil producing areas.
Records show that a gas explosion in 1880 de-
stroyed seventy-five dwellings and also burned
70,000 barrels of oil and forty drilling rigs at
Rixford. Less destructive oil-country fires oc-
curred in the same and succeeding years. In 1880
Duke Center had a population of 2,068. It was
chartered as a borough on September 23, 1778
with burgess, council, and other regular borough
officials. However, the dwindling population that
followed the hectic days of the oil boom made it
advisable to drop the borough organization. The
Duke Center “Herald” was published in 1879.
It was succeeded by the “Auger” and it, too,
finally suspended publication. In the same year
the borough had a bank which did business until
the nineties. Many of McKean County’s well-
known physicians and attorneys first hung out a
shingle at one or the other. of Otto’s oil country
villages. Acre for acre this township has probably
produced as much oil as any other district in the
county. A writer in 1890 makes the statement
that nearly fifty men of the township volunteered
for service in the Civil War and that nearly
twenty of that number lost their lives in the

struggle,

Sergeant: As before noted, this township was

one of the two original ones into which the co
L unt
was first divided, We should, therefore, anticipatz

first settle-

was -

and Arno, Hu::ter who later built the fir:a::gilr;
4 ring the early years of

cB?nnty one of its foremost citizens v:a: J:h:l

: :.hu:p :lfl fanter whose name appears on prac-

e g € court records from September,
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In the eatly “twenties” P. E.
Instanter as an agent for Jacob R
cleared the Bunker Hill farm of some dreds
of acres. Among the legends of the county is the
Bunker Hill fire that burned the slashing so
thoroughly that it never reseeded itself to
trees. It still remains a barren waste covered with
wild grasses and bracken. -

McKnight's “History of NMM
sylvania” contains this reference to one of the
most noteworthy of the county’s early settlements,
“Teutonia is the name of a German settlement
situated on Stanton Creek fifteen miles southwest
of Smethport, near the old town of Instanter in
Sergeant Township. It was started in March of
1843 on the plan and by the enterprise of Henry
Ginal, a German now residing in Philadelphia
and the agent of a community which is known as
the Society of Industry. It contains at present
about four hundred and fifty people. There is a
school house and about seventy log houses be-
sides a saw mill, tannery, and a large store fur-
nished with all articles needed for food and
clothing. The society has forty thousand acres
rich in coal, iron ore, limestone, and brick clay.
The society is founded on the principle of com-
munal ownership of property and is sustained by
the cooperation of its members, who put every-
thing raised into the common storehouse and
draw out according to their needs.” This commu-
nistic project went the way of all others of its
kind. Instanter, Ginalsburg, and Teutonia gave
way to the village which has survived during the
years and is known as Clermont, It, too, has seen
better days. At one time two hundred and forty
families lived on the “Patch” just across the road
from the village school house. Now the * P
where once lived the families of coal miners is a
€ow pasture with here and there signs of cellar
eXcavations as the only remains of a place that
must have once hummed with activities peculiar
to that type of village, At one time the censes df
both coal mining and lumbering, it was an enter-

prising village on the Pennsylvania Railroad line

between Larabee and Johnsenburg, But now coal,

lumber, and railroad are things of the past and
of Clermont’s business

went much

OnAugmcS,lD«,
veyfz.zoomof‘
to the Board of Fj
orkiut B B




at Kane Forest Recreational Park™ after the

father of the donor, a grandson of Thomas L.

Kane who settled the Kane area. The State is to
construct within a ten-year period a dam on Five
Mile Creek of sufficient size to make a lake of
at least two hundred acres.

Wetmore: This township occupies the south-
western corner of McKean County. It is situated
on the western edge of the Big Level and has in
many places an elevation of better than two thou-
sand feet above the sea level. The Tionesta, Kin-

~ zua, and Clarion Rivers have tributaries arising in
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"Tradition makes the Big Level a favorite
hunting place for both the Red Man and the
pioneer whites, In addition to the larger famed
animals there were also the flocks of wild pigeons
which raised their young in the beechwoods of
the higher levels. During the sixties, the Senecas
were accustomed to come to the Kane area and
spend weeks in trapping this much sought-after
game bird. There is also tradition that the Kittan-
ning Indian Trail running from Onondage, the
capital of the Six Nations, in Central New York
to Kittanning, an Indian town on the Allegheny,
passed through this township and that there was
a much-used camping site within what is now
Kane Borough.

It was not until a relatively late date in the
development of the County (1860) that settlers
under the leadership of Gen. Thomas L., Kane
came to Wetmore Township. In 1883 the Ridg-
way Lumber Company was formed, which took
the timber from 2,500 acres. In 1886 Wetmore
was the center of deep well drilling, which brought
rich dividends in petroleum production at Jo Jo
and other localities in the district.

Wetmore Township was organized in 1856
from the western area of Sergeant Township.
Prior to that date it was necessary for voters from
Kane and other portions of Wetmore Township
to go to Clermont to vote, which was, of course,
a great inconvenience. Jo Jo, Kanesholm, Ser-
geant,deastKanehavebeenlmownasd\riv-
ing centers of industry, as well as homes of those
who found employment in Kane Borough.

25. What are the historic backgrounds of the
~ city and villages of the County?
Bradford City: Bradford City is the metropo-
ﬂlafth,eBtadfordoilﬁeld&Wereitnotforvdae

of something like 33,000 barrels of

oil per day, McKean County would not rank
mgthesemﬁchmeounﬁes_percapiminthe

State, and were it not for McKean Cou i
there would have been no city of Bndfm ;dn
1874 the population of Bradford Township, in-
cluding the village, was three hundred and fifty.
The oil production for the preceding six years
was roughly estimated at twenty-one barrels per
day. In that same year on December 6th, Brad-
ford's real oil boom started with the discovery of
a seventy-barrel well. In 1880 the population of
Bradford Township had increased to 2,699 and
that of the city to 9,197. The daily run of oil in
that year stood at 55,173 barrels. The feverish
activities of the early oil days are shown by a
statement which reads as follows: “In 1880 eight
large brick buildings, including the Riddell House,
and five hundred frame buildings were erected;
the swamp was reclaimed and a number of new
streets laid out.” Col. A. K. McClure of the
Philadelphia Times in his visit to Bradford in May
of 1883 said, “The houses as a rule are pitched
together like a winter camp, with here and there
a solid brick edifice to mock the makeshift struc-
tures around it, Oil is just now on the boom.
Everybody talks oil, and the visitor must talk oil
or endure the unconcealed pity of all around
him.”

In 1873 the village was incorporated as a
borough. The first city election was held in Feb-
tuary, 1879. There are few cities with a popula-
tion approximating 18,000 that have an area more
restricted than Bradford. During the years, city
councils have had difficulties arising from this
situation. Narrow streets, old frame houses dating
back to the oil days, houses crowded too closely
together have also added to the difficulties faced
by a very efficient fire department. In 1879 the
city took over the privately-owned Water-Works
Company and has since purchased many warrants
of woodlands in Foster and Bradford Townships
lying to the northwest of the municipality. Very
recently the city also acquired the Mt. Alton air-
port which was started by city and county funds
and then finished by the Federal Government. A
hangar, administration building, lighting and
other 2quipment will be erected and regular serv-
ice installed by the United Air Lines. It is said
that fifty-two industries, four hundred ninety-
seven communities, and approximately three
hundred seventy-nine thousand will be benefited
if this airport is made completely ready for use.

The initiative that led to “wildcatting” for oil
has also been felt in the civic, professional, and
industrial life of the city. Many great fortunes
have been made in the Bradford area. Much of

that wealth has been channeled into activities



18

ent and general wel-
:{e:;.:l, Children’s Home,
County Society for Crippled Children,
e S e burculicin: Sodeun a8
the McKean County Iu AP

Carnegie Public Library are some of the recip
of noteworthy gifts by civic-minded cm:e:;.
These data have space to mention only two o the
many eminent citizens who have -helped to give

Bradford its place in the economic and
. te.

life ;lf the mty E:nn:—y m_]r., i Bt
. ; ; His family
tauqua County, New Y?rl:? in 1839, d
removed to Hillsdale, Michigan, where he attend-
ed college. He taught school and then moved to
southern Illinois, where he engaged in general
merchandising. In August 1865 he started: for the
oil fields of Pennsylvania. He made his first stop
at Pit Hole in Venango County and then went on
to Titusville where he achieved a small fortune
that was lost in the panic of 1873. Without a cent
of money, he leased and putchascg :14,:(:‘0 a;res
of land in McKean County and drilled his first
well at “Toad Hollow” (South Bradford) on July
28, 1875, It came in at forty barrels and not only
proved of great financial value to him but at the
same time opened one of the greatest oil terri-
tories the world has ever seen. Men had confi-
dence in a man who had failed a number of times
and yet came back stronger with each defear. He
served his county in the General Assembly from
1878 to 1884. When measured by his political
and business success, his private benefactions, and
the daring, initiative, and independence of his
thinking, Senator Emery is typical of the men
who explored and expanded the Bradford oil

field. :
Rufus Barrett Stone was for years one of the
leading members of the McKean County Bar, He
was born in 1847 in Groton, Mass, He was of old
New England stock which settled his native town
in 1655, He entered Williams College and later
tried to enlist in the Navy during the Civil War.
In 1869 he entered the United States Tnternal
Revenue Service and was assigned to the Third
Dutnct in Mississippi where Mr. Stone had excit-
g cxperiences during the hectic days of the
ruction period. He was repeatedly shot at,

hanlged in effigy, and made the recipient of death
notices. Upon his marriage he decided to seek a
and safer environment in the
; / e to Bradford prior to 1880 and
tmme'd!ately took an active part in all phases of
civic, business, and cultural life of the com-
munity. The time soon came wh
Or or trustee for more Bra

looking toward civic
fare. The Bradford

en he was either
dford enterprises

than an otherofhetcidmn.&&};m
he mpizly advanced to a leading position amon
the attorneys of the county. In 1879 Mr. ¢
founded the “Evening Star.” He drafted th .
charter of the Board of Trade and was its first
vice president. He was member and treasurer of
the Hotel Company that built the St. James
Hotel, long known as Bradford’s leading M :
He was corporator of the Bradford, Bordell, and
Kinzua Railroad, and a director of the Warren
State Hospital at its organization in asgo. B‘dt.
Stone organized the McKean County Historical
Society. With N, M. Orr and j. M. McLure he
founded the Pompelon Club in 1884 whose ob-
jectives were purely cultural. Mr. Stone was also
the author of a history of the county entitled
“McKean, the Governer’s County” and a biogra-
phy of Arthur George Olmstead. ‘

Two of Bradford’s best known industries at
the present time are the Kendall Refining Com-
pany, one of the leading independent petroleum
producing and refining companies in the Eastern
Oil Field, and the Dresser Manufacturing Com-
pany which has developed from a business having
a net worth in 1929 of $2,400,000 to one that
now has a net worth of $16,400,000. This plant
has been working on very essential war products
and expects to reconvert its activities to civilian
needs at the close of hostilities.

Eldred Borough: Eldred Borough is a “new
name for an oil settlement.” In November of
1879, a petition was sent to the Postmaster Gen-
eral asking that the name “Allegheny Bridge” be
abolished and that Eldred be substituted therefor.
In February of the next year, the petition was
granted and a name that for fifty years had been
well known along the Allegheny River was dis-
carded. On December of 1880 the village was
incorporated as Eldred Borough.

The Bank of Eldred was opened in February,
1879. It was robbed in 1884 of $2,500 cash. In
the fall of 1907 the bank failed and for some
years the village did its banking elsewhere. The
First National Bank was incorporated in 1909.
It soon had a fine business at home and among
the nearby oil regions. In 1941 five robbers
robbed the bank of #3,000 in cash, overlooking
a much larger sum stored in the vaults. The
robbers were soon captured along with much of

their ill-gotten gains.
The areas of Otto and Eldred Townships,
borough, are among

which are adjacent to the
the rich cil-bearing districts of the county. Natu-
activities.

rally the village has prospered from oil
Du days of the oil excitement,

ring the boom












sugar manufactured, sixty-nine thousand seven
hundred and fifty pwnd&__M Knight's H"?fé

this portion of the State well ‘dese »
the T‘nmh:name,P?‘The Wild-Cat Region” is pﬂ;ﬁ
by this author’s statement that Jeffe.rson, whi
included what is now Elk; McKean, with a pom(:l;
- of what is now Cameron; and Potter had a tot

of §$2,847 receipts for furs and pelts.

Six other counties of the northwest.er:n area
of the state were listed as having fifty distilleries.
It seems that the Scotch Irish pioneers of the
western part of the state found it more profitable
to turn their corn into liquor than it was to trans-
port the corn over the mountains to markets in
the eastern part of the Commonwealth. Hence
their opposition to internal revenue levied by
Washington’s administration.

Pioneers in Potter, Tioga, McKean, and Jef-
ferson Counties, on the other hand, utilizied the
hard maples which grew in great numbers in these
counties to produce annually 481,080 pounds of
maple sugar. Doubtless cane and beet sugar as we
now know this product must have been very
scarce in the forties. Doubtless many pioneer
families derived a relatively good income from
the production of this toothsome delicacy,

27. To what circumstance did McKean owe its
high rating as a salt producing county?

In a description of Norwich Township men-
tion is made of the Grear Elk Lick which was
located at Gardeau in the Portage Valley a few

miles north of Emporium. One traveler of the.

early days states thac an area of three acres had
literally been cleared of grass and brush by the
stamping deer and elk that came to the spring
and swampy area to lick the ground for the sale
it contained. Since salt was scarce in all the north-
western regions of the state, settlers of this and ad-
joming areas managed to obtain this necessary
article by boiling the water from salt springs.
Very early roads were built in Potter and McKean
Counties to what was afterwards known as the
Parker Salt Works. In 1779 salt sold in Piees.
burgh at $3.50 per bushel. It was one of the
absolute necessities, and one that could not be
made or found near the average pioneer home,

meats and hides, In a histo of

it is related that while Gene?a,l Wivl?t
engaged in surveying lands for the
of Monsey Indians came to his cabj
for sale which in those days was

State, a party
n near Warren
as precious as
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of salt to give them a little, b
whole and vowed they would hs
or foul. General Irvine drove
days afterwards, several of Corr
came to the cabin to visit and hunt. }
had threatened his life, and that he ‘_
of the Senecas down the river to wi
movements. It is altogether probable
other of McKean County’s long list of val
products was more acceptable to the men :
women of pioneer days than the salt obtained
early secclers form the salt springs on Parker

28. If Francis King could have made his jour.
neys to his new home by airplane rather
‘than by cance and horseback, how would
McKean County have appeared? @

It is likely that few of the counties of Penn-
sylvania better deserved the name Penn’s Woods
than McKean. From the air practically the whole
area, except here and there a portion of a stream,
would have appeared carpeted by the beautiful
greens of the hardwood, hemlock and pine for-
ests. Valleys, mountain sides, and ridges were
alike clothed with forests so dense that even at
noon time the direct rays of the sun were unable
to penetrate to the ground beneath. However,
pioneers of those early days were denied a bird-
like passage over McKean County. They must
make their toilsome way by foot, horseback, or
by cance. Whichever course was taken, the voy-
agers waged endless war against the forest which
encompassed them. On land there were the over-
hanging branches, and fallen branches and tree
trunks to vex the careless one. By water there were
half submerged branches and snags that threaten-
ed the unwary boatman as he “poled” his labor-
ious way up shallow streams. And always at the
junction of streams there was low swampy ground
which abounded with “ponkis,” Indian term for
gnats. The dangers and difficulties of forest travel
in those early days are vividly portrayed by ex-
cerpts taken from the journal of Rev. John Ee-
tewein, one of the missionaries that helped to
lead Christian Indians from Wylusing in Brad-
gord C:umy byth way of the West Branch of the

usquehanna rough Clearfield, Kittanning, ‘
and the Allegheny tog:he Big Beaver, in Lawrence
County, 4

“Friday, July 17, 1772; Advanced .
mﬁe:. Hdaumymdmmm%?m

_'ﬁatarday. July 18th. Moved on without
and his division, who on account of rain ha







% i firlt
, twenty years after Fufncls ngs.

::1::0 the cottymty, that a postoffwg was mbhshuiei
at Ceres. From 1820 to 1824 mail 'for the se
ment was carried on horseback, a distance of one
hundred nine miles from Jersey Shore to Olean
once in two weeks. In 1832 a two-horse. stage ran
once a week over the route. Miss Marie ng in
her history of Ceres writes that postal privileges
were very limited. Williamsport was the nearest
and most convenient post office. Letters fro_m
England were sent to someone in Philadelphia,
and then forwarded to Williamsport, directed to
Cerestown, and were then brought on from
Williamsport by an accredited person coming
through. If no one happened to be journeying
northward through the wilderness, a messenger
was sent once a month on foot with a pack horse,
with letters and messages to the land office at
Ceres, a distance of one hundred fifteen miles.

In 1825 records show that a contract was let
to carry mail from Bellefonte by way of Karthus,
Bennett’s Creek, Brockway, and Scull’s to Smeth-
port. In 1827 Ridgway and Sergeant were added
to the postoffices served by this route. In June
1830 the contract was given to Gideon Irons of
Smethport at eight hundred and forty-five dol-
lars per annum for the delivery of the mail once
a week.

Judicial business for the McKean County
area prior to September 25, 1926, was transacted
in Bellefonte or Williamsport. Land records were
kept and sessions of court were held there. Hence
it was vitally important that means of communica.
tion be maintained regulacly as possible,

Barter was taken in exchange for postage. In
the thirties, the Postage on a letter carried up to
four hundred miles was twenty-five cents. The
postmaster, who was usually a merchant too, took
produce for postage the same as for goods.
Twenty-five cents Postage was worth two bushels
of oats or potatoes, four pounds of butter, or five
dozen eggs. :

3

- York. This road

lowed the Allegheny River ':; a
then pused directly west )y way o
Creek, the ridge route, and down Riley
to East Smethport, and thence westward
Lafayette, and down the Kinzua V‘HQ" :

village of Kinzua in Warren County. C
records show the first bridge across
gheny River in this county to have been
1822 at the “Red House” crossing at '
Place. It is evident that travelers on the East and

West Road prior to that date were obliged to ford
this stream of water. In 1816, the State Legis.
lature appropriated a mere $3,000 to be distrib-
uted among the northern counties for the im-
provement of this road. Roosevelt \way
(United States 6) follows the old East and West
Road for a greater part of its way across the
county, the exception being the distance between
Port Allegany and Smethport and the present
approach to Kinzua village from this county. If
the proposed Federal Conservation Project is
buile at Kinzua, it will be necessary to establish
a different routing for the Roosevelt Highway.
Perhaps the older route down the valley from

Lafayette to Morrison will again be used.

Two other trans-county roads of very udy
days should be mentioned although both have

long since been discontinued.

The first was the Ellicottville Road which was
constructed by Joseph Ellicott, agent for the Hol-
land Land Company mentioned elsewhere in these
data. This road was opened about 1806 from
Dunnstown, opposite Lock Haven on the Susque-
hanna, up that river to the Sinnemahoning
branch, and then to Emporium, the Big Elk
Lick (Gardeau) and then over the highlands
crossing Matvin Creek about seven miles from
Smethport, and again over highlands and down
the Tuna Valley and on to Ellicottville, New
made the lands of the Holland
Company accessible, and for many years was the
only wagon road on the Sinnemahoning. This
road was of little use in the later development of

the County,

The northern part of what is now Elk County
was originally a part of McKean County. In 1820,
James Gillis came from Ontario, New York, to
a farm near the present site of Ridgway to act as

the agent for Jacob Ridgway, at that time regard-

edatherichentmaaiadmy’ v :
Stephen Girard. The first concern of Gills wat

some means of commun




?vecld. Under his ififluence and that of his patron
in Philadelphia, the Kittanning.Olean Road was
myed and opened to traffic in 1826. This
was one hundred and ten miles long and
a great excitment at the time it was
mnreyed and opened for use. It really amounted
to liccle as the tides of migration moved east and
west and not north and south.

Road building in pioneer days was a tremen-
dous problem. Labor was scarce and distances
were great. Road building machinery consisted
of rude ploughs and inadequate scrapers drawn
by ox teams. Much of the work was done by
hand with axes and grub-hoes. Routes must be
surveyed through unknown regions, foot-paths
widened, streams forded at suitable points, or
bridged. Swamps must be filled in, or by-passed
by circuitous routes. In many places roads had to
be corduroyed for long distances to make them
passable during the rainy season. Nor did it fol-
low that a pioneer road once opened remained
suitable for traffic. It is a matter of record in 1810
that a road opened several years previously be-
tween Emporium and Canoe Place was so grown
up with underbrush that it was impassable. It
was reopened in 1814.

A road unique in county annals is the “Plank
Road” constructed during the days of the oil
excitement by Dr. W. L. Chrisman of Eldred
and know as the Eldred-Duke Center-Rixford
Plank Road. In the race of rival contractors to
develop new territory, heavy oil field equipment
was moved over all sorts of roads and in all kinds
of weather. Oil country tradition tells of horses
drowning in some of the deepest mud holes along
river flats. To expedite travel between the towns
named, Dr, Chrisman constructed a substantial
plank road with tolls at each end and at conveni-
ent places along the seven miles of the right of
way. It is said that the road was never a financial
success. Plank roads were constructed for shorter
distances in other places in the county. These
roads were constructed when the hillsides of
McKean were still covered by wonderful forests
of hemlock. Planks and timbers suitable for road
constructon were readily available at a very low
cost.

From the earliest days of the pioneers until
the present time the people of McKean County
have been very much interested in road build-
ing. A modern highway map shows this county
has more miles of improved road per capita than
any other county in the state. In fact the actual
mileage of this area compares very favorably with
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urban centers with many times our population.
The wealth of the townships, the needs of the oil
fields, combined with a progressive program of
State highway construction and maintenance have
m the county a splendid system of improved

32. What railway played an important role in
the development of McKean County and
Northwestern Pennsylvania?

For nearly seventy years after the first set-
tlement of the county, there was no way of bring-
ing provisions and supplies of various kinds into
the McKean area except by horse team and
wagon roads. This region was so sparsely settled
and its manufactured products so few that for a
long time the building of a railroad was not
practical, However, in 1837 the Assembly passed
an act permitting the incorporation of a railroad
to run from Sunbury at the junction of the North
and West Branches of the Susquehanna up the
West Branch of that river and on to Erie. Com-
missioners were appointed in each county in this
part of the State to sponsor the movement. Mc-
Kean’s representatives were Solomon and Asa
Sartwell, Hiram Payne, John King, Jonathan
Colegrove, and Orlo J. Hamlin. In 1840 Edward
Miller, chief engineer, made a report of a route
two hundred and eighty-six miles in length. As
originally contemplated, the railroad would have
gone up the West Banch to Clearfield, and from
that point to Franklin, and then on to Erie. A
little later the plans were revised to include Drift-
wood, DuBois, Brockway, and Warren. Fortu-
nately for McKean County, the influence of
General T. L. Kane and the Philadelphia owners
of extensive holdings of lands in McKean and
Elk Counties led to a final revision of the route
as it now stands. Someone of that day said of
this road through the northern wilds, “To build
a railroad through a dense forest of worthless

_ hemlock, ferocious beasts, gnats, and winter-

green berries requires a large purse and great
courage.” Nevertheless, the effort was continued
with work starting at both ends of the line. In
1859, a train was run from Erie to Woarren. In
May 1864, a train was run from Sunbury to St.
Marys. Western Elk and McKean being midway
between the terminal points of the line were the
hscphcestobesewedbythencwmﬁroad-
Futhermore, it is quite likely that Civil War
activities delayed the building of the last few miles
of this project. In any event, on May 23, 1864,
the Sheffield to Kane portion of the line was com-
pleted,andonOctob&Wofd.\'aym,dm



entire railroad was opened. It was twenty-seven:
years from the time of incorporation until the
last link in McKean County was finished. When
the road was first contemplated, there was not a
cabin on the proposed line from Emporium to
Ridgway, and but one from Ridgway to Shef-

field. It was truly a pioneer road.

The influence this railroad had on all phase.s
of life in this area is shown by this incident. It is
related that raftsmen of the Eldred-Port Allegany
localities after running their rafts to Pitsburgh
in the spring would come back by rail to Kane
and then walk from that point to their homes
in the eastern sections of the county. Kane to
Port Allegany was one day’s walk,

What other railroads were constructed at a
later date?

Other railroads followed in rapid succession.
In January, 1866, the Buffalo and Pittsburgh
and the Buffalo and Bradford railroads were
opened. On November 19, 1883, the Rochester
and Pittsburgh railroad afforded still another
route from Bradford to Buffalo. In October,.
1867, work was started on the Buffalo, New York
and Philadelphia Railroad which was completed
from Buffalo through Olean, Eldred, Port Alle-
gany to Emporium in December of 1872 This
road did much in the developing of industry in
the eastern part of the county. The Pennsylvania
Railroad at the present time maintains service
between New York, Philadelphia, Washington
and the Buffalo and Toronto areas over this line
now, of course, greatly improved.

33.

After the building of the main line railroads,
numerous feeder roads were built in McKean
County, at first 1o expedite the manufacture of
lumber, and later ¢ develop the Bradford oil

fields. I is impossible to trave] ,] :
long creek in the along any fairly
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the mills by rail over ¢
vania at Keating Snm% ,

A very interesting an e
“oil boom” railroading in McKean
well be written. Railroading “boomed,
build just one railroad if there was
another track, and why conform to any set
dards of grade or equipment? Stock was s
all sorts of railroads everywhere, some of
was almost valueless from the day it was
One authority says, “If variety is a nmenda
tion to railroad system, McKean County is si
ularly well endowed.” Here have been Mﬁ
roads ranging from a single rail to a double track
of six feet gauge, and from a prairie level to a
grade of 264 feet per mile. ik

Undoubrtedly, in referring to the one-track
railroad, the author had in mind the celebrated
“Peg-Leg” line that was one of the curiosities of
the early oil field. The McKean County Histor-
ical Society has the smokestack of the peculiar
up-right boiler that furnished motive power for
this line that extended from Bradford through
Tarport-Foster Brook-Babcock-Harrisburg Run
to Derrick City. The boiler blew up in January of
1879 killing practically all members of the crew
and assistant superintendent of the road, six in
all, and seriously injuring three others. The cars
ran astride of an elevated track on a single rail
which was nailed to a single wooden stringer which
rested on the top of wooden posts. Ten double
trips were made a day along the line mentioned
above, and an accident occurred nearly every day.
Not long after the serious accident of January,
the road was sold at 2 sheriff’s sale.

In 1880 the Bradford, Bordell and Kinzua
railroad was incorporated. This road, which for
years connected Bradford with Smethport, was
opened for traffic in June of the same year as far
as Kinzua Junction, and was extended to Smeth-
port in December. It played a' very considerable
Part in the opening of the ol territory between
Smethport and Bradford,
~ In 1881 the Bradford Railroad, fourteen miles
. extent, was buile from the ciey by way of Custer
City to a point near Marshburg where it joined
'Wlth the Kinzua Railroad, likewise fourteen miles
in length, These opened the oil and lumber re-
sources in the area west of Bradford.

__In writing of the early development of the oil
industry in Eldred, reference was made to the
Kendall and Eldred and the Wellsville and Eldred
Railroads which together served some of the rich

oil-beari ' -
i aring areas between Bldmd. : mi

it
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The Mt. Jewett, Kinzua & Riterville Railroad
was chartered in 1889 by E. K. Kane as president,
This road at first was eight miles in length. As
time passed, this line was extended to Backus,
and then on to Smethport, and was known as the
Kushequa line. It served as a connecting link
between the Pittsburgh & Western Railroad that
ran from Butler to Kane to Mt. Jewett, and the
Buffalo, Rochester & Pittsburgh, and at one time
the Pennsylvania line at East Smethport. For
years it was the chief means of getting into or
out of Smethport.

34, Of what importance was lumbering in the
early development of the county?

During the first seventy-five years after the
organization of the county, lumbering was the
chief industry. In the beginning pioneers who
desired to make homes in the wilderness thought
the forest giants that grew in such profusion were
more or less of a nuisance. The clearing of a
forest farm was a difficult matter. Trees had to
be chopped down, cut into suitable lengths, drawn
to the log-pile and stacked, and then when dry,
burned. It is a part of the early tradition of the
county that the humus was so burned out of the
soil during the great Bunker Hill logging fires
that the soil was not and has not been fertile since
that time, Ploughing and cultivating around the
stumps required patience. Farmers must either
wait a long time until the stumps were so decayed
that they could be easily removed or dug out
soon after cutting by means of the grub-hoe,
stump-lever and a team of oxen or horses. It
should also be noted that practically all the pio-
neer buildings were constructed either of logs
squared to fit or of logs rolled into place with
intervening cracks chinked by rails, moss, straw
and mud. For many years the construction of
rude cabins and barns was the only practical use
the settler made of the forests.

As soon as cities began to develop “down the
river” there was an urgent demand for lumber
in the form of boards and planks and squared
timbers that in those days took the place of iron
and steel in modern construction. As late as 1881
when the Court House was built, the contractor
used great beams, some of them eighteen inches
square and forty feet or more in length as sills,
plates, and rafters.

Since there were no improved roads and
trucks, and since the railroads had not yet pen-
etrated to the wilderness of the upper Allegheny,
the only way the forest products could be moved
to market was down the streams to the cities. This

There was much more of it and

eri s
o of pin snd of g vt et
the l(a)t: thirties to about 1875, o

¢ author writing about this .
the spri.ng and fall such large qumuo’?th;l:
great pine trees were cut and put afloat on the
river in rafts that the perils of navigation were
great as the rafts were compelled to run both day
and night to get to market before a summer
drought or a winter freeze tied them up for the
rest of the season. Small rafts were made at
Coudersport and the Canoe Place. These were
doubled by tying together at Larabee and then
again at Warren.” G

Another writer at Franklin gave an account
of a still different use of these rafts, He stated, "It
was not an unusual thing to see an Olean raft on
the river with a team of horses, a cow, a girl cook-
ing, and a mother spinning flax. These were emi-
grants going to Ohio or Indiana State.”

Some of the large rafts that left Warren for
Louisville and New Orleans were sixty to seventy
feet wide and from two hundred and fifty to three
hundred feet long. These rafts, like floating
islands, formed at once the vehicle and the tem-
porary residence of several families on the way
down the river. Each raft had its little shanties
and its busy population; some lifting the long
heavy oars, some cooking at the great fire, some
eating bacon from a broad clean shingle, some
lounging in the sun, and some practicing their
coarse wit upon the gazers from the shores, and
making the wild hills echo with their shouts.

The second period of the lumber industry
might be called the saw-mill and hemlock era. The
coming of the railroads made it possible to saw
logs locally and then ship the lumber to market
by branch and main line railroads. In time those
critics who once had said, “Hemlock is worthless,”
found that the products of the hemlock forests
were even more valuable than the pine had been.
the demand for
forest products had also greatly increased. There
was also the increasing demand for the bark of
the hemlock which for years was the chief tanning
element in use in the tanneries of this country.

In the year 1840, statistics show that there
were ninety-four tanneries and seven hundred
fifteen saw mills in the eight counties inclu
wholly in the Last Purchase. The least number of
these were at that time in McKean and Potter
Counties. It is evident that the products of the
great forests of these more remote regions
not yet begun to move to the markets that were
being supplied from sources nearer at hand. How-







C o b SRS AR IUE KRR 5,412.08

Sergeant Township = 60.40

Wetmore BOMATNy e 436.36
.

Total daily production ..~~~ 37,557.26

The yearly production

robabl
about twelve million barrels, y Rt

According to the above table there is only one-

of the fifteen townships that does not produce
some oil. It is also interesting to note that the
production of the several districts varies from
time to time as the drilling operations increase or
decrease. The latest big development in the
county was the Music Mountain strike in La.
fayette Township, which, from August 1937 until
the end of 1942, produced 3,750,000 barrels of
oil from 670 acres which lay in an area which
ranged from eight hundred to two thousand feet
in width. It is very evident that the “wildcatters”
of the eighties did not hit upon this rich find.

37. The Bradford oil field is a part of what
larger oil deposit?

The Bradford oil field, which stands out as one
of the most productive in the development of the
petroleum industry, is part of an oil field which
has its northern terminus in Southern New York
and extends southwestward across Pennsylvania
into West Virginia. The oil from this region has
qualities which make it the chief source for the
best lubricating oil yet discovered. It should be
understood that the Bradford field was not
opened until ten years after the Titusville-Oil
Creek petroleum deposits had been discovered
and fully exploited. This was between the years
1859 and 1866. Prospectors then worked south-
ward from the Oil Creek region, probably think-
ing that the higher plateau region of the upper
Allegheny was barren of oil sands. The few wells
that were at first drilled here were abandoned
before the oil bearing sands were reached. How-
ever, beginning in 1874, paying wells were dis-
covered in the Bradford area and soon an oil
field was opened that in extent, uniform richness
of sands, and excellence of products, has equalled,
if not surpassed, any of the succeeding petroleum
discoveries. Like every other oil discovery, Brad-
ford had its “boom” years, but no field has had
the long time production, now approaching the
sixty-year mark, which has characterized the
Bradford region. Other tremendous fields have
come and have gone, but the Bradford area is

still producing better than ten million barrels of
oil per year. While the Pennsylvania field pro-
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duces only 1.3 per cent of the national total, i
should not be forgotten that from Pennsylvania’s
crude oil there comes about forty per cent of the
nation’s highest grade lubricating oil. Qur great-
est contribution to the war effort has been that
special lubricant that “keeps them flying” in all
kinds of weather and under the most adverse
conditions, Of equal importance in the develop-
ment of a world petroleum industry was the dis-
covery and organization of all phases of early oil
field activities that have made this industry one of
the greatest and most important in the world.
Methods of drilling, refining, and transportation
were worked out in the Pennsylvania fields. Later
drillers and operators from Pennsylvania went
wherever oil strikes led them; Oklahoma, Cali-
fornia, Texas, Russia, Burma, and the East Indies.
We live in a Machine Age to which McKean
County has contributed its share of the oil that
has kept the wheels turning. We have also con-
tributed our share of the “know how” that has
helped to develop the oil fields that have been
discovered since 1880.

38. What is the historical background of the
discovery and rise of the petroleum indus-
try in this region?

As early as 1627 a French missionary report-
ed a “fontaine de bitume” near Cuba, New York.
It seems that a well known path of the Seneca
Indians led from this region southward to an-
other area where similar and more extensive
springs were located along a stream now called
Oil Creek, which flows into the Allegheny River
at Oil City. There is evidence that the Indians or
a preceding race had gathered oil from the springs
by means of pits walled by logs.

In 1775 a map was made in London which
had written across the region indicated above the
word “petroleum.” In 1791 a map of Pennsyl-
vania was prepared which named the stream
“Oyl Creek.” Thus, when the nineteenth century
opened it was known in this country, England,
and France, that Northwestern Pennsylvania had
a substance called “rock oil” that seeped from
springs and that it burned freely, and had, as then
thought, great medicinal value taken internally,
or used as an ointment for external injuries, Early
settlers also mixed it with flour and used it to
lubricate the wheels of their ox-carts. Early his-
torians have also stated that the Seneca warrior
mixed his war paint with the product of the oil
springs which gave a permanency.not otherwise
obtained. The French commandant at Fort Du-
quesne wrote to Montcalm at Quebec that while



descending the Allegheny 2 chief 'of the Senecas
inviced his pacty to wimess religious ttes: &
Vemg°~ A Pan Of the monul co. l'cok
firing the surface of a stream covered .mth a blac
scum that burst into flames when lighted by a
tm’dl'l‘.he early New England settlers of the upper
Oil Creek Valley were soon made keenly aware
of the commercial value of the curious product
which sold for as much as one dollar a gallon.
Buyers came from Pittsburgh on foot and by
horseback and took away all they could carry.
It was natural that there should be a desire to
increase the production, and it also easily followed
that those outside the petroleum region who first
became interested should be New England busi-
ness men. Ebenezer Brewer of Titusville had a son
in Vermont who was a physician. The doctor who
made frequent visits to Titusville had a sample
of the “Seneca Oil” analyzed by Dartmouth
College. The report was very favorable. It was
just a problem of getting more of the product
which up to that time had been gathered by soak-
ing woolen clothes in the oil pits and then wring-
ing them out, or in some instances by a slow
skimming process. It was even thought by some
that there might be reservoirs of oil which fed the
springs, and that these might be tapped,

Finally in May, 1858, the Seneca Oil Com-
pany was organized in New Haven. Its charter
gave the right to dig, bore, or mine for petroleum
on the lands of Brewer and Watson near Titus-
ville, Pennsylvania. The company sent an ex-
railroad conductor, a jack-of-all-trades, E. L.
Dfake to develop the project. In order that dignity
might be added to the enterprise, mail was ad-
dressed to Drake at Titusville, as *“Colonel.”
Drake started to dig his well and then decided to
bo.re or drill. Fortunately, for fifty years prior to
this s folks had been drilling wells for salt-
water in the Pittsburgh and West Virginia are
Drake secured the services of W. A. Smith asa.
blacksmith, who had experience in makin ;h
drilling tools, and also using them, in drillingg sal:
wells. Smith agreed to work for $2.50 per da
with the services of his fifteen-year-old b .
I(thm in.” We owe 25 Sk h y t:° .Oy

' ch to the ingenuj
of Smlth as we do to the persistence of Dﬁake z
the initial venture thar ushered in the Age of Ojl.

means. Like every other

bt i
‘heD!.'akeweﬂinmjg 853mdthednllmgof

» there were many delays

Ppointments, Ebenezer Brewet, the fa.

I tell you; you are associated with a set
and if they have not already ruined you, ¢
do so if you are foolish enough to let them do it.””
The Titusville people dubbed the company, “The
Fancy Stock Company” and laughed at the idea of
drilling a well and pumping oil from solid rock.
Dr. Benjamin Silliman of Yale, one of the fore-
most chemists of the country, was employed to
confirm the findings of the Dartmouth analysis,
His laboratory blew up and the promoters were
obliged to furnish special apparatus before the
report could be obtained. Finally this was ready
and contained the following significant statement
which really marked the turning point in the
establishment of the oil industry. “The Titusville
oil, unlike that from any other place, does not
become hard and resinous from continued ex-
posure to air. It cives a most perfect flame for
illuminating purposes when used with an Argand
burner. The company has in its possession a new
material from which it may manufacture very
valuable products.” After this report it was not
so difficult to sell stock in the Seneca Oil Com-
pany. Drake finally had his “rig,” thirty feet high,
twelve feet square at the base, and three feet
square at the top, lifted into place by a crowd of
good natured but skeptical on-lookers who were
glad to help raise “Drake’s Yoke” if it would help
with the “wild and wooley” enterprise. Then there
followed cave-ins and other mishaps with the
weeks lengthening into months. Smith and his
sons kept working while Drake persuaded the
New Haven promoters to send enough money to
keep the job going. Local friends at Ticusville
endorsed his personal note for $500 just before
oil was struck. At first the work was started by
digging and cribbing. Finally an iron pipe was
driven through the dirt to the bed rock thirty-two
feet below the sutface, and real drilling began with
steam power about the middle of August. When
driller Smith came to the well on Sunday after-
noon, August 28, he found that oil had fillled
the hole nearly to the derrick floor, Soon the
news was spread to the entire countryside that the
“Yankee had struck oil.” The excitement that
followed was equal, according to eye-witnesses, to

anything that had taken place ten years before in

the California gold rush. Men came from every-

ﬁ;re. teying . mnd and dill for oil. Some
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over t.he hole. Two men would puﬂ&cp.km

permitting the drill to hi the rock. The spring of



ehcpohwouldthenli&dmdﬁu’mdmm e
process would be repeated until patience was
ezhauwed or the oﬂ-be‘mg sand rea htd. o
fortunate that the reservoirs of oil i cT'q,mt'jlu,
and Oil Creek regi g
gions were found at a shallow
depth. The tools in use in the early. days would
never have reached the deeper sands in McKean
County. In 1868, the method of drilling wells
5 h casing was first used on the Benninghoff
Run in Venango County. Previous to this time all
wells had been drilled “wet,” with a six-hundred-
foot hole taking anywhere from three to six
months. The new method shortened the time by
tjwo-thirds and has been called the greatest inven,
tion ever applied to the art of drilling.

In the year 1859, the production of oil hardly
reached two thousand barrels which sold at
seventy-five cents to one dollar a gallon, In 1860
there were seventy-four producing wells with a
total production of two hundred thousand barrels
that sold at twenty-two cents per gallon in Decem-
ber of that year. During the year 1861, the
Venango field reached a new high level with the
drilling of wells whose initial production was as
much as three thousand barrels daily. Since many
of these wells also had tremendous gas pressure,
it is not surprising that many accidents occurred.
When the first of these great wells was struck,
there was an instantaneous explosion which ig-
nited the oil covering an acre or more of ground.
Two other wells, oil vats, and a barn were con-
sumed, as well as the oil which spouted from the
new well. Eight men at or near the well fled for
their lives. All were either killed or seriously
burned. During the year 1861, the average daily
production reached five thousand barrels. The
price dropped from ten dollars per barrel in Janu-
ary to fifty cents in May and ten cents per barrel
at the end of the year. In the meantime specula-
tion ran riot. Fortunes were often made and lost
in a week, at times over night. One well located
on a barren hillside tract of thirty-six acres that
originally sold for two hundred dollars produced
1,500,000 barrels of oil that netted the owners
over five million dollars, The tremendous pro-
duction of oil, the fluctuation in price, the uncer-
tainties of drilling, all combined to produce an
orgy of speculation seldom if ever equalled in any
other place in the world. :

Drake and others in the early sixties found
themselves with oceans of oil on hand and no
great demand for it. The odor, the impurities
found in the natural product, and even the color,
all tended to make disposition of crude oil a dif-
ficult matter. However, refineries sprang up at
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Titusville and Corry, costing anywhere from four
to one hundred twenty.five thousand dollars, that
began to manufacture an illuminating oil that
soon drove the coal oil products from the mar-
kets. Because the transportation of oil was easy
down Oil Creek and the Allegheny, it naturally
followed that Pictsburgh soon became the refining
center. In the spring of 1863, the city had sixty
refineries, representing a capital of one million
dollars. They employed six hundred men and
had a total weekly capacity of twenty-six thousand
barrels. :

American merchants began to seek foreign
markets. United States consuls at London, Ant-
werp, Leghorn, St. Petersburg, and Frankfort
sought to introduce it into European countries.
Representatives of local gas companies, coal oil
manufacturers, and insurance companies opposed
its importation. However, its use became so wide-
spread that in 1862, the London Times prophe-
sied that the value of the trade in petroleum in
time might exceed that of American cotton,
That prediction has been more than realized.
There is hardly a navigable river or a roadway or
a trail in the world that does not have along its
courses abandoned tins which once contained
kerosene. In fact, few of these tins are abandoned,
as the natives in the remotest jungles find a ready
use in their simple economy for tin cans of the
great oil refining companies.

Perhaps the most spectacular development of
the oil industry was the transporting of crude oil
from the wells to refineries by means of horse
drawn wagons. This method of carrying oil was
succeeded by railroad tank cars and eventually by
pipe lines. In the beginning, petroleum was placed
in barrels at the well and then when the waters
of Oil Creek were high enough, flat boats loaded
with oil were floated down stream to Oil City and
Pittsburgh. When waters were low, ponds were
built along the creek and by careful management
these were released at the right time and flat boats
loaded with oil carried down stream. In the mean-
time, prior to 1862, six thousand horse teams were
employed in the oil fields to transport barrels of
oil to market. A report of that day said, *“No such
transportation service had ever been seen in the
United States except in the Army.” It was not
an uncommon sight to see a solid line of teams a
mile or more in length on the roads leading into
railroad centers. The customary load was five or
six barrels per wagon. In 1862 teamsters received
$2.50 to §3.00 per barrel for delivery of oil from
the fields to Meadville. Roads were most miser-
able, and during the rainy season the mud impreg-
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40. What other flourishing i

years has also sutfeces ‘md“ltrym of fon;wt

Seventy-five years ago the minin,

was an industry of considerable i:x::r::!o:oi:{
this county. As early as 1815 coal was discovered
near I.luunter. A few years later other and larger
deposits were found. In 1845 coal was delivered
from Clermont to Smethport at 12 %c per bushel,
and also hauled by teams to many towns in neigh-
boring New York State. In 1874 large mines
were opened at Clermont and in 1875 the first
train load of coal was shipped from that town to
Buffalo over the McKean and Buffalo line which
had been constructed from Larabee to Clermont
for the better transportation of that product. It
is related that ar one time there were two hundred
fifty houses for miners on the “Strip”, just across
the road from the present Clermont school house.
Mt. Alton was another county town that enjoyed
a flourishing trade in coal. The Erie railroad from
Salamanca through Bradford to Johnsonburg
ran across the Kinzua valley by means of the
celebrated Kinzua Bridge which at one time was
one of the greatest in the world. Excursions were
at one time run from Pittsburgh, Rochester and
Buffalo to accommodate summer excursionists
who desired to view this great structure which is
301 feet high and more than a half mile in
length.

An interesting by-product of coal mining in
the early days was the “coal oil” extracted from
coal by means of pressure and distillation. How-
ever, the discovery of petroleum soon put an end
to this rapidly expanding industry, Likewise the
production of coal itself came to an end when
thicker and more productive veins of coal were
opened in counties to the south of McKean.
Philadelphia interests still own large tracts of land
in the county and it may be that once again when
coal deposits are exhausted elsewhere that coal
will once again be mined extensively in the county.

41. How does McKean County rank in Agri-
culture?

McKean County is not well situated for many
phases of agriculture. The growing seasons are
short, not averaging much more than ninety days.
Corn and other crops requiring a longer season
do not do well. Much of the land near the heads
of the valleys is so called “marginal lands” as
far as farming is concerned. In these areas much
of the land that was formerly cultivated has been
allowed to revert to pasture, and quite often to
areas that are growing up to second growth brush
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and timber, However,
to the dairy industry
are turning their
of agriculture.
In 1916 representative citizens of boroughs

and townships organized the M

Far:?\ Bureau, which later becamecf::nwnc:sm:iz
A'gtlcultural Extension Association, which is af-
thatetzl \Q.Iith the Pennsylvania State College. This
Association brings to the farmers the latest

thought and research along agricultural lines.
Often experts from State College visit the county

and help solve the problems of the individual
faz:mer, The work of the Association is under the
guidance of a County Agent who represents the
college in the county. More recendy a Home
Economics Representative has been added to the
Association staff. Under the influence of Exten-
sion Association agricultural interests have made
rapid advances in gardening, poultry raising,
forestry, soil erosion control and in dairying. The
ratio of farm income in the county to that derived
from oil and manufacturing has been as one to
thirty which shows that McKean is not a distinc-
tively farming community. However, as time
passes agricultural interests will undoubtedly grow
in importance.

42. Is there a National Forest in the County?

Parts of four northwestern Pennsylvania
counties are included in what is known as the
Allegheny National Forest. Areas in Elk, Forest,
McKean, and Warren totalling 726,000 acres will
finally be acquired. To date the forest includes
nearly 463,000 acres. Headquarters of two Rang-
er Districts included in the forest are at Warren
and Marienville. The Allegheny Forest is one of
seven national forests in the Eastern Region. The
purpose of these forests may be stated as follows:
To conserve timber, water, grazing, recreational,
wildlife and orher resources of national forests
for the use of the people. National forests con-
tribute to industrial enterprises through their
yearly cut of over a billon board feet of timber;
they protect watersheds and help to ensure pure
and abundant water supplies to hundreds of towns
and cities; furnish pasturage for about thirteen
million head of livestock; and afford playgrounds
for millions of recreation seekers.

The Pennsylvania Department of Forests and
Waters has cooperated with the National Forest
in constructing ten lookout towers in the forest
area for the detection of forest fires. During the
past ten years only six-tenths of one percent of
the area has been burned over, or less than one-

the county is well-adapted
ufd many successful farmers
attention to this important phase



half acre annuaily for each 1,000 m?“m
Every fire, except a few due to lightning, could
have been prevented if care had been taken by
those responsible for its cause. The manage-
ment also has a well-developed plan for reforesta-
tion by planting seedlings in carefully sjelectcd
areas. Provision is made at the Kane Experimental
Forest to study the growth, management, a'nd
protection of the various types of forests, \»‘Vlth
special attention to streamflow floods and erosion,
and the effective utilization of forest products.
The Department of Timber Management plans to
harvest each year only the trees that are ready
for cutting and doing so in such a manner that
the amount cut will not exceed the growth dur-
ing that period. Timber from the Allegheny Na-
tional Forest is used in the furniture industry, the
manufacture of paper, wood distillation products,
shoe lasts, bowling pins, brush handles, as well
as many other products.
One of the most important uses of the forest
_is to afford recreational opportunities. This in-
cludes fishing, hunting and camping. Two areas
of virgin forest, where one may walk beneath an
‘unspoiled canopy of ancient oaks, pines and hem-
locks have been secured by the forest manage-
ment. These are the “Hearts Content” area near
Warren, and the Tionesta Natural and Scenic
Forest which comprises a large tract of virgin
hemlock and hardwood near the center of the
Allegheny Forest where the four counties join,
This tract includes nearly four thousand acres of
virgin forest. ;
43. What may be said of the
of McKean County?

Citizens of the county may be justly proud
of its military record. At the time of the Revolu-
tion there was no McKean County. Records show
only one Revolutionary war veteran to be buried
in the county, which was hardly settled ar ¢he
time of the War of 1812 During the wars of

~ more recent date the deeds of the military units
organized in the county, reflect the high patriotic
spitit of its citizens. Thus we read in the Four

County History a stateme

nt that nearly fif men
volunteered for service in the Union armt:: in a

military history

Emporium to join the Bucketail contingents, It

is also a tradition that these men refused accom.

34

Of the many famous regiments of the Civil
War the Bucktails of McKean and n ghboring
counties take first rank with the greatest. To name
the battles in which this regiment took part is to
read the roll of the battles of the Army of the
Potomac. The regiment was known as the First
Rifles or the Pennsylvania Reserves. It was also
known®as the Forty-second Pennsylvania Volun.
teers, but the name which they made famous in
their day and ours is the “Bucktails.” Lincoln
called for volunteers on the 15th of April in
1861. Two days before this Thomas L. Kane,
founder of the town of Kane, had petitioned Gov-
ernor Andrew Gregg Curtin for leave to organize
a command in the so called “Wild Cat District”
(McKean must have been pretty wild in those
days to earn a name like that). Permission was
given and on April 24th a group of three hun-
dred men, three companies assembled on the
banks of the Sinnemahoning at Driftwood,
Cameron County, where three rafts were built
upon which the men drifted down the Susque-
hanna to Harrisburg. This regiment has the honor
of being one of the first organized for the defense
and preservation of the Union. Company I com-
manded at that time by Wm, T. Blanchard was
composed of eighty-two officers and privates from
McKean. Records show that twenty-two of these

men died in service. Twenty-eight were wounded.
At Dunkard Church at Antietam the Buckeail

regiment lost its colonel, a lieutenant, and twenty-

eight men. Sixty-five members of this regiment

were wounded. In two days this otganization lost

110 officers in killed, wounded and missing. The

men who volunteered in the Bucktails were hardy

woodsmen who knew the use of the ax and the

rifle. They were accustomed to hardship and

danger and under the inspiring leadership of
General Kane this regiment established a name
for bravery and efficiency that was second to
none 'in the armies of South and North.
Pennsylvania has named the highway which
le-:ads along the Sinnemahoning and Susquehanna
rivers from Williamsport to Kane the Buckeail
Trail in honor of the heroic band of men who
in their eager patriotism offered their services to




-irln‘m .N&tioml Guard, served with
tinction in the Spanish-American and the First
World War. These companies were in the fore.
front of the Allied drive along the Ve

front sle Ri
and in the Argonne Forest that marked tehe e‘:dr

of World War 1. In that conflict the sheriff’s
office under the direction of the late E. W. Jones
had charge of all the selective service activities of
the county. In World War 2, the Federal govern-
ment organized the county into two Selective

ice areas with headquarters in Mt Jewert
and Bradford. These centers have inducted Mc-

Kean County men into, their country’s service.

44. Y/hat progress has been made in educa-
tional affairs in the county?

equal dis-

The foregoing pages of these data have re-
corded conditions existing in the early social and
business life of the people. A comparison with
conditions existing today shows a remarkable
progress to have been made. The same holds true
of educational maters,

It is recorded that the first school was estab-
lished at Instanter, probably a Catholic Mission
school. Little is recorded about the schools of
early Quaker Ceres. It is quite likely that very
rudimentary education was carried on in the
homes of the first settlers. It is a matter of record
that Richard Chadwick taught a school in Smeth-
port in 1828 in a frame house located in the rear
of the lot where the Methodist Church now
stands. In 1879 M. O. Campbell, the county
superintendent, makes the statement that a Miss
Eliza Manning taught the first school under the
common school act of 1834 near Port Allegany.
McKean’s nine school districts had voted unani-
mously in favor of this act, as had fourteen other
western and northern counties of the State.

In 1837 Ceres, Hamilton, Sergeant, Shippen,
and Norwich districts made reports under the act
of 1834 to the State Department of Public In-
struction. Eight teachers were employed in these
districts with a total of three hundred four pupils
enrolled. Two years later Bradford Township,
Corydon, Keating and Liberty also filed reports.
The nine districts showed a total of forty-three
teachers and 900 pupils, The total expenditures
for school purposes was $1,233.00.

The law of 1854 provided for the election of
county superintendents of public schools. Inter-
esting items showing the educational trends of
the early days are taken from their reports. Many
of these superintendents did a tremendous
amount of work at small salaries under adverse
circumstances. Thus W. J. Milliken late in his life
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———

told the writer that he visited wood’s schools
on Mead Run in Hamlin Twmh:wwhen he
found it necessary to use a large pocket knife to
blaze the trees so that he would be sure to find his
way back to the railroad crossing near Lantz's
Corners in time for the evening train. Only ex-
cerpts that are “different” are taken from these
early reports, '

F. A. ALLEN—1853

He makes the following statements in an
annual report to the State Department, There
are 70 one-teacher schools in the county. The
monthly cost per pupil is 27 cents while the total
amount raised by local taxation is $1,723 with

. $805 appropriated by the State.

This item is of interest, “There are 13 towns
in the county, 12 of them have schools. All these
schools were visited save one which was 35 miles
away. This was not reached before the term
closed.”

“All the schools are in operation some time
of the school year. The text books are antiquated
with no uniformity. There is a glorious inde-
pendence permitted, each child bringing his own.
The school houses are miserable indeed, a few are
supplied with blackboards.”

The first teachers’ institute in the county was
held in 1855 with 40 teachers in attendance.

L. R. WISNER—1857
This superintendent says in an annual report,
“There are 6,000 people in the county with 78
school houses. Some districts have a 13 mill tax
for schools, but the people nobly sustain the
burden of the common schools. The salaries paid
teachers are liberal. The males receive an average

_of $21, the females $13 per month, respectively.”

WARREN COWLES—1861
CHRISTOPHER CONFORTH-—1864
Superintendent Conforth resigned to become

chaplain of the 150th Reg. Penna. Volunteers.

Hon. W. W. Brown, late resident of Bradford,
was appointed to the position, Mr. Conforth was
reelected but soon after resigned again to assume
the principalship of a school for soldiers’ orphans.

W. J. MILLIKEN—1870
During this period Bradford, Lafayette and
Hamlin built two-room school houses. He men-
tions the Smethport graded school while that in
Port Allegany was not yet in operation.
W. H. CURTIS—1873

At this time there were 89 school houses in



schools. ‘

A summary report of this period makes men-
dan ok Academy, estabished by
of Legislature in 1829 with a yearly a siatio
of §100. The school was put into operation in
1837 with Luther Humphry as principal. Hon.
Glenni Schofield of Warten was principal in 1841
and Hon. B. D. Hamlin was principal in 1844.

‘ W. P. ECKELS—1887

This superintendent wrote in one of his re-
ports, “The long term is being gradually substi-
Books are being furnished by several of the
districts free of charge.”

J. E, MYBRS——-I_B%

In a summary review he writes, “In 1881
there were one hundred thirty-two schools, In
1900 there are just one hundred more schools
;::n the county.” It was also a noteworthy event

seventy-eight pupils received eighth grad
diplomas in 1900. e

BURDETTE S. BAYLE—1905

In his report for 1910 Superintendent Bayle
fmiedthatofthesixhighschochunderhis
jurisdiction, two have four-year courses, three

'!uvealhne-yeuamme,md has
course. He then adds, R g
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solidation of school activities
paign thathasplacedevery
on an improved highway. More

courses of study, more efficient i
enriched programs of school act

sulted from the Tl
i 0y e
graded borough
ship school has

cKean County,
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E  R. P. DARNHART--1oug

No period in educati

experienced the truama ofazmglichiﬁt"’
as that beginning with Act 403 ofange
1945 Assembly. This legislation trj o
ed a constantly esculating salary sgae;-
ule--the first since the Edmonds :c-
which set minimums for elementary teachert
at $1000 and high school teachers a:
§1170. Each assembly following 1945 say
a continuous upgrading of the profession
financially.

Salary mandates were followed by
drastic changes in the level and method
of computing subsidies to school districts
including subsidies for school facilities
and new school programs in special educa-
tion, vocational education, etc.

Accompanying spiralling costs both at
the state and local levels, was increased
pressure to recorganize the circa 2500
school districis into larger administrative
units. County Boards were mandated by Act
361 in 1947 to present County Plans to
effect this reorganization.The 1947 County
Plan, subsequently amended, called for six
(6) administrative units in McKean County.
The amendment rcduced the number to five.
Subsequently the County Plans were gencral-
ly revised in 1953 and 1963 with minor
revisions continuing through 1966.

The period from 1946-1958 saw slow
movement toward the implementation of the
County Plans, Special and increased subsi-
dies for joint, union, and merged schools
resulted in the first jointure effected in
1951 in the Port Allegany Area. The first
union school district in McKean County was
also created in this same school system.

The County Cffice, under the leader-
ship of the Superintendent was in the thick
of school district reorganization. Finan-
cial studies, proposed educational pro-
grams, joint board agreements, and a
myriad of meetings preceded reorganization
in each of the five administrative units.
With the priceless assistance from locd
administrators and wise leadership among
the several boards distinct progress was

':"’: in streamlining administrative con-
r°‘ .

evolvegva 1958, Administrative Unit #1 had

joint school system consisting of
Bradford CityBradford and Foster Tomsh?ps.

Administrative Unit #2 had compl

: i t cted
its organization of a joint schoo?“zystem
comprised of Eldred Borough, Eldred and

Otto Townships and the
Ceres Township. g A et

Administrative Unit #3 had
1955 effected a single schogl di s?u’-iz:‘Zyl;
v?tc .of the electorate uniting the school
districts of Port Allegany Borough and the
Townships of Annin, Liberty, Plcasant Val-

ley, and Roulette. The latter two from
Potter County.

Administrative Unit # had through
several stages moved to include a joint
school system for Smethport Borough and the

Townships of Hamlin, Keating, lorwich, and
Sergeant.

Administrative Unit #5 had combined
the Kane Union School District (made up of
Hamilton and Highland (Elk) Townships and
the Boroughs of iane and Mt. Jewett) with
Wetmorce Township and a portion of Sergeant
Township.

C. F. FEIT--1958

The next twelve years single
school districts evolving. All adminis-
trative units were finally merged by the
school District Reorganization Act 299 of
1963 with reorganization mandated effect-
jve July 1, 1966. Five administrative
units were proposed by agreement of local
school districts in the 1963 County Plan.
This concensus was predicated on the as-
sumption that legislative action on an
Intermediate Unit would be requested to

saw

provide those services not financially
feasible in the small Tlocal units. The
following school districts resulted from
Act 299.

Administrative Unit #1--The Bradford Area

School District

Administrative Unit #2--The Otto-Eldred
School District
Administrative Unit
School District
Administrative Unit
School District
Administrative Unit
school District

#3--The Port Allegany
4ly--The Smethport Area

#5--The Kane Area
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